M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 21, 2002
9:13 AM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 38, Side A
SFC 02 # 38, Side B
SFC 02 # 39, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Dave Kelly convened the neeting at approximately 9:13 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelley, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Loren Lenman

Senator Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Al so Attendi ng: REPRESENTATI VE CARL MOSES; SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT,;
KEVIN BROOKS, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Department of Fish and Gane; JOHN BI TNEY, Legislative Liaison,
Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation, Departnent of Revenue; BRETT
FRI ED, Econom st, Departnment of Revenue; KRIS NOROSZ, Icicle
Seaf oods; PATRICK GALVIN, Director, Division of Governnental
Coordi nation, Ofice of the CGovernor;

Attendi ng via Tel econference: From Anchorage: FRANK DI LLON, Al aska
Trucki ng Associ ation

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

SB 226- H GAWAY DESI GN & CONSTRUCTI ON

The Conmittee heard from the sponsor and held the bill in
Committee.

SB 279- SPORT FI SH LI CENSES FOR 9/ 11 RESPONDERS

SFC- 02 (1) 03/ 21/ 02



The Commttee heard fromthe bill’s sponsor, considered and adopt ed
two amendnents, and reported the bill from Conmttee.

SB 181- SMALL COMVUNI TY HOUSI NG LOANS

The Conmmttee heard testinony from the sponsor and the Al aska
Housing Finance Comm ssion. A conmttee substitute and one
anendnent were adopted, and the bill was held in Conmttee.

SB 277-DEFI NI TI ONS OF FI SHERI ES BUSI NESSES

The Conmittee heard testinony fromthe sponsor, fisheries business
representatives, and the Departnent of Revenue. The bill was held
in Commttee.

SB 308- COASTAL ZONE MGMI' PROGRAM

The Conmmittee heard from the bill’s sponsor, the Ofice of the
Governor, and took public testinmony. A commttee substitute was
adopted and the bill reported fromComittee.

SB 4- MUNI Cl PAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON

The Conmittee heard fromthe bill’s sponsor, considered and adopted
one anendnent, and reported the bill from Conm ttee.
#SB226

CS FOR SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BI LL NO 226(TRA)

"An Act requiring certain highway projects to be designed and
constructed so that the highways w Il adequately serve
anticipated traffic levels for at |east the next 30 years; and
providing for an effective date."”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.
Co-Chair Donley informed the Commttee this bill addresses

designing and constructing Alaska's najor road infrastructure to
provide for |onger usable road life.

FRANK DI LLON, Al aska Trucking Association, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage to informthe Conmttee the trucking
i ndustry supports legislation that would provide for |ong-range
i nfrastructure and useful road-Iife planning.

SFC- 02 (2) 03/ 21/ 02



Senator Ward asked if expanding to a 30-year useful |ife road-plan
woul d af fect federal funding.

M. Dillon stated federal agencies would support a 30-year plan
since the process of planning and building road projects takes a
| ong tine.

Senator Ward asked if neasures to address changes shoul d be taken
at the federal |evel

Co- Chair Donley commented now is the time to seek procedural and
techni cal changes under the Federal H ghway Fundi ng Act.

Senat or Austerman noted that roads in other states are constructed
with up to six inches of asphalt while roads in Alaska are
constructed with two inches of asphalt and often are not sealed to
prevent absorption of noisture. He asked if this bill would address
these sorts of construction issues.

Co-Chair Donley clarified that design and construction of roads,
not regul ar mai ntenance of roads, is the intent of this bill. He
expl ained current federal |aw mandates the design |ife of roads
range between 20 and 30 years, with bridge Iife of up to 50 years.
He stated Al aska’'s current design practice is 20 years; however,
there is a question as to whether the life of a road begins at the
initial planning stage, the authorization-to-proceed stage, or at
the construction stage. He commented this is an attenpt to be
consistent with federal regulations and design a road to |ast at
| east 20 years.

Senator Austerman reiterated that |aying four inches instead of two
inches of asphalt would extend road life. He opined that the
“phi l osophy” of the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities is that nore road mles can be paved with two inches
than with four inches. He asked if these sorts of issues could be
addressed in this bill

Co-Chair Donley stated they could be; however, the real focus of
t he design | anguage addresses “the geonmetry of a project,” such as:
appropriate nunber of |anes; feasibility of turn |anes; and merging
traffic concerns.

The bill was HELD in Conmittee.

#SB279

SFC- 02 (3) 03/ 21/ 02



SENATE BILL NO 279

"An Act authorizing the comm ssioner of fish and gane to issue
conplinentary sport fishing licenses and tags to Septenber 11
energency responders and their spouses; and providing for an
effective date.”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.
Senator W1 ken, the sponsor of the bill, explained this bill would

authorize issuing up to 250 conplenentary sport-fishing |icenses
per year to those firenen, police, and Enmergency Medical
Techni ci ans who responded to the Septenber 11, 2001 terrorist
attack on the Wrld Trade Center in New York Gty and the Pentagon
in Washington, D.C. as a token of appreciation to those
i ndi vi dual s.

Anmendnent #1: This anendnent inserts the sunset date of Decenber
31, 2003 into the bill

Senat or W1 ken noved for adoption of Anendnent #1.

Senat or G een obj ect ed.

Senator W/ ken expl ai ned Arendnent #1 would further define the tine
frane of this bill by inserting on page 1, line 12 the sunset date
of Decenber 31, 2003.

Senat or Green w t hdrew her objection.

Amendnent #1 was ADOPTED, wi thout objection.

Amendnent #2: This anendnent defines the service tinmeframe of
responders by inserting on page 1, line 10, “at some tine between
Septenber 11, 2001, and Novenber 11, 2001, inclusive,” and del etes
“on Septenber 11, 2001,” on page 1, lines 11-12.

Senat or W1 ken noved for adoption of Anendnent #2.

Senator W1l ken stated this |anguage woul d assi st federal, state,
and | ocal agencies in identifying individuals who qualify for this
benefit.

There were no objections, and the anmendnent was ADOPTED.

Senat or Leman voi ced support of the bill and asked if the | anguage

SFC- 02 (4) 03/ 21/ 02



coul d be expanded to include surviving relatives of those killed in
the attack or other responders.

Senat or Austerman stated fam |y nenbers of the deceased and ot her
responders are not included as they are not readily identifiable,
and the current |anguage in the bill would be easy to adm nister.
He stated the Departnent of Fish and Gane has determ ned, using
statistical analysis that approximately 100 to 150 i ndividuals
m ght partake of this offer; therefore, the nunber of free |icenses
is capped at 250 per year.

Senator Leman renarked that the inclusion of other individuals who
generously donated time, noney and supplies would be a nice
gesture.

Senator Ward asked if the mlitary police on duty at the tinme of
the attack on the Pentagon woul d be eligible.

KEVIN BROOKS, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Department of Fish and Gane, responded he is not sure if they are
included in the three identified categories.

Senat or Ward asked if the mlitary police could be included.
Senator W ken confirmed they could be.
Senat or Ward acknow edged the inclusion of the mlitary police.

Senator Wl ken offered a notion to report CS SB 279 from Comm ttee
wi th individual recomrendati ons and acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

There were no objections, and CS SB 279(FIN) was REPORTED from
Commttee with a new zero fiscal note, dated 3/19/02, from the
Department of Fish and Gane

AT EASE 9:30 AM/9: 33AM

#SB181

SENATE BILL NO 181

"An Act meking the interest rate for the Alaska Housing
Fi nance Corporation's small comunity housi ng nortgage | oans
the sane as the interest rate on nortgage |oans purchased
under the corporation's special nortgage | oan purchase program
from the proceeds of the nost recent applicable issue of
t axabl e bonds before the origination or purchase of the snal

SFC- 02 (5) 03/ 21/ 02



communi ty housi ng nortgage | oans."

This was the fourth hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

Co-Chair Donley noved for adoption of CS SB 181, 22-LS0488\Was a
wor ki ng draft.

There were no objections, and the commttee substitute was ADOPTED

Anendnent #2: This anendnent inserts |anguage into the bill’s title
and inserts a new bill section as foll ows.

The title is amended to read:

“An Act relating to the Al aska Housing Fi nance Corporation’s
rural assistance |oan program relating to the use of nopney
from the housing assistance |loan fund in the Al aska Housi ng
Fi nance Corporation, preventing use of that noney for a
single-fam |y owner-occupi ed house with a value that exceeds
$250, 000, adjusted for inflation, and repealing a provision
aut hori zi ng use of that noney for nonowner-occupi ed housi ng;
repealing the hone ownership assistance fund; and providing
for an effective date.”

Section 1. AS 18.56.420(a) is anended to read:

(a)There is created in the corporation, as a revolving | oan
fund, the housing assistance |oan fund consisting of noney
appropriated to it by the legislature and deposited in it by
the corporation, and repaynents of principal and interest on
| oans made or purchased from the assets of the fund. The
corporation shal

(1) adopt regulations to admnister the housing
assi stance | oan fund under AS 18.56.400 — 18.56.600; and

(2) subject to appropriation, provide noney for a rural
assistance loan program to originate, purchase, [OR]
participate in the purchase of, or refinance

(A) small comunity housing nortgage | oans;

(B) loans nmade for building materials for snall
comuni ty housi ng;

(© loans made for renovations or inprovenents to
smal | communi ty housi ng;

(D) loans made for the construction of own-
occupied small conmmunity housing other than
| oans to builders or contractors or |oans that
conpensate an owner for the owner’s |abor or
services in constructing the owner’s own
housi ng.

SFC- 02 (6) 03/ 21/ 02



Co- Chair Donl ey noved for adoption of Amendnent #2.
There being no objection, Arendnent #2 was ADOPTED.
AT EASE 9:35 AM/9: 36 AM

JOHN  BI TNEY, Legi sl ative Liaison, Al aska Housing Finance
Corporation, Departnent of Revenue, explained that Arendnent #2 was
offered at the request of the Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation
(AHFC) and stated current state l|law regarding the Housing
Assi stance Loan Fund (HALF) Program does not allow a borrower to
refinance their loan. He stated refinancing “is a very standard”’
provi si on under nost conventional |oan prograns, and is “also an
issue of fairness for the borrowers.” He infornmed the Commttee
that AHFC s income woul d be affected by the refinancing conponent
because when | oans are refinanced at |ower interest rates, incone
into the fund is also reduced; however, he noted AHFC currently
| oses borrowers who want to refinance to other financial
i nstitutions.

Senator Hoffman asked for clarification on how this bill would
affect AHFC s “bottom |l i ne”.

M. Bitney responded AHFC s |argest concern is the incone
restriction on persons whose incone nust be | ess than 400% of the
United States Departnent of Health and Social Services poverty
| evel guidelines. He stressed this limtation, based on prior
hi story of the program would exenpt “close to 50 percent of the
borrowers.” He stated recent analysis indicates that nost of the
current |oans are for household sizes of one or two persons whose
income is slightly over the 400 percent |evel, or approximately
$44, 000 for a one-person househol d.

Co-Chair Kelly distributed an AHFC chart [copy on file], dated
March 20, 2002, reflecting current |oans and the affect this bil
woul d have on them

Senator Hoffrman summarized this bill would result in a |oss of
i ncone to the State.

M. Bittner concurred that this bill, as currently drafted, would
reduce revenue to the State.

Co-Chair Donley stated M. Bittner’s response “was based on the
assunption” that AHFC would | ose noney by the introduction of a
refinancing program Co-Chair Donley questioned if AHFC could
expand its business in other areas such as providing loans to

SFC- 02 (7) 03/ 21/ 02



comunities that are ineligible for the HALF program

M. Bitney responded the commttee substitute does not del ete size
restrictions or clarify small comunity popul ation paraneters;
therefore the HALF programis restricted from being expanded to
some communi ties.

AT EASE 9:41 AM 9:42 AM

Co-Chair Donley asked M. Bitney to work with his staff to
formul ate appropriate |anguage regarding snall comuni ties
restrictions.

Co-Chair Kelly stressed the intent of this bill is to offer AHFC
nore |lending possibilities, and not to harm the program He
supported Co-Chair Donley s request for AHFC to work with staff to
establish the appropriate |anguage in the bill to provide AHFC with
further |ending opportunities.

The bill was HELD in Conmittee.

#SB277

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 277(RES)
"An Act relating to the tax levied on pollock processed by a
floating fisheries business; and providing for an effective

date."
This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.
Senat or Austerman, the bill’s sponsor, explained that this bil

addresses inequitable taxes on the fish processing industry whereby
sone processors pay nore tax than others. He stated the federa
Anerican Fisheries Act (AFA) created this situation.

Senat or Ward asked what entities would |ose noney if this bill were
enact ed.

BRETT FRIED, Econom st, Departnent of Revenue, stated the
Departnment’s fiscal note, dated 3/20/02, anticipates the State
| osi ng between $333,000 and $400,000 in revenue. He stated this
“range” presentation is the result of confidentially concerns.

Senator Ward questioned if other entities, in addition to the

SFC- 02 (8) 03/ 21/ 02



State, would | oose noney under this |egislation.

Co-Chair Kelly clarified that communities would al so | ose revenue,
as half of any revenue the State collects fromthese taxes is re-
appropriated to them

Senator Ward theorized that if the State received $300,000 fromthe
fish processors’ tax, comunities would receive $150,000 of that
amount; therefore, if the State collected $300,000, the net loss to
the State is actually $150, 000.

M. Fried concurred wth Senator Ward’'s comment that the
| egi slation would incur a net loss to the State and al so reduce the
rebate anount available to communiti es.

AT EASE 9:50 AM/ 9:54 AM

KRI'S NOROSZ, Icicle Seafoods, informed the Conmittee that Icicle
Seafoods is a Petersburg, Al aska corporation established in 1965.
She stated Icicle Seafoods supports the conmittee substitute for
this bill, as “the purpose of the bill is to ensure that al
pol | ock processors pay the sane tax rate to the State of Al aska.”
She noted that in 1998 the AFA, passed by Congress, “changed the
conpl exion of the pollock industry.” She rem nded the Conmittee
that the State of Al aska has a three percent Fisheries Business Tax
on shore-based processing facilities, and in the 1990's the State
passed a Fishing Resource Landing Tax which placed an additi onal
three percent tax on all fisheries resources “processed by an off-
shore floating facility and landed in the State.”

Ms. Norosz continued that the AFA, sponsored by Alaska's U.S
Senator Ted Stevens, was enacted to: “Americanize the fishery”;
“rationalize” the industry; settle |ong-standing disputes on fish
allocations for off-shore and on-shore fishery sectors; and
restrict the nunber of “players” that could participate” in the
fisheries. She stated the AFA also allowed the State of Alaska to
tax all Pollock industry participants. She stated this allowed
Al aska to inpose a three percent Fisheries Resource Landing Tax on
the entire Pollock industry even though they “never operated or
brought product” into State waters. She noted this resulted in
i ncreased revenues to the State.

Ms. Norosz stressed only two floating pollock processors are
qualified under the AFA to process Pollock, and they are subject to
a five percent Fisheries Business Tax (FBT) by the State. She
explained to the Cormittee the FBT has a differential tax allocated
to processing plants on-shore or floating offshore plants within
three mles of Al aska's shores.

SFC- 02 (9) 03/ 21/ 02



Ms. Norosz stated this bill seeks “to create a level playing field”
of three percent for all pollock processors under the AFA. She
stated Icicle Seafoods is currently paying a five percent tax and
the additional percentage nmakes “it very difficult to start out
your season knowi ng that your costs are going to be higher than any
of your conpetitors when you are conpeting in sane market to sel

t hat product in.”

Co-Chair Kelly asked for confirmation that if a processor “is tied
up at the sane | ocation for one year,” they would qualify for the
three percent |evel.

Ms. Norosz responded that under the Fisheries Business Tax, a
floating processor could quality as an on-shore facility with the
three percent tax if they are “permanently affixed to the | and or
they can stay in one location for the entire tax year.” She
el aborated these definitions make it difficult to performrequired
mai nt enance, repairs and inspections to the vessels for safety and
envi ronment al consi derati ons.

Co-Chair Kelly inquired as to why a vessel could not operate as a
stationary processing vessel in Dutch Harbor.

Ms. Norosz explained that Icicle Seafood s processor, the Northern
Victor, has a site-specific waste discharge permit fromthe U S
Envi ronnental Protection Agency (EPA) that restricts its operating
| ocations. She stated there is no avail abl e space for the Northern
Victor in Dutch Harbor, and it is “highly unlikely” they would be
able to get a permt for Dutch Harbor as the harbor is suffering
fromair quality standard probl ens.

Co-Chair Kelly inquired if the five percent State tax issue could
be amended in this bill to allow a vessel to qualify for the three
percent one-year stationery tax status with provisions to allow for
novenent for routine mai ntenance and inspection.

Ms. Norosz clarified that Co-Chair Kelly is addressing changing the
definition to “allow npbvenent for periodic repairs and
mai nt enance,” and inspection, but not to allow for processing in
ot her | ocati ons.

Co-Chair Kelly confirmed that is the intent.

Ms. Norosz stated changing the definition in this manner woul d be
acceptable to Icicle Seafoods.

Senat or Austerman, referring to the AFA provision allow ng the

SFC- 02 (10) 03/ 21/ 02



State of Alaska to inplenent a Resource Landing Tax, asked how nuch
noney this tax has raised for the State.

M. Fried did not have that information.

Senat or Austerman asked the Departnent of Revenue to provide the
amount to the Commttee.

Senator Ward asked if the AFA |limts the nunber of operating
pol | ock processors.

Ms. Norosz responded the AFA restricts the nunber of pollack
processing facilities and identifies qualifications. She continued
the AFA specified a fixed nunber of on-shore processors and
identified the factory trawers and their “nother ships.”

Senator Ward asked if the nunber of permtted factory traw ers
could be increased fromtwo to three.

Ms. Norosz stated the AFAlimts the nunber to the current two, and
the only way for a newentity to enter the poll ock market woul d be
to purchase one of the current two floating facilities, purchase an
exi sting on-shore plant, or purchase an eligible existing factory
traw er.

Senat or Ward asked if there is a value placed on these permts.

Ms. Norosz expressed the difficulty in establishing values as each
facility has different capacities, equipnment, and the |ike.

Ms. Norosz described the transaction process involved when Icicle
Seaf oods bought into the pollock fishery in Decenber of 1999, the
year follow ng the enacting of the AFA

Senator Ward asserted that when Icicle Seafoods bought into the
pol l ock fishery the tax was five percent.

Ms. Norosz stated that is correct.

Senator W1l ken characterized the AFA as dividing the pollock

fishing industry into three sectors: "the off-shore catcher-
processor, the nother ship processing at sea, and the on-shore
plant.” He asked which tax |evel the offshore catcher-processor

sector pays to the State.

Ms. Norosz replied that sector pays a three percent tax because
there is an additional fisheries resource |anding tax.

SFC- 02 (11) 03/ 21/ 02



M. Fried stated these taxes are not cunul ative.
Senat or W1l ken asked what tax is placed on the “nother ship.”
Ms. Norosz responded the “nother ship” pays three percent.

Senator W/ ken, noting the on-shore sector al so pays three percent,
guestioned how the five percent tax is levied if all three defined
sectors pay a three percent tax.

Ms. Norosz clarified that the two floating Pollock processors are
assessed the fisheries business tax as they are considered part of
the on-shore sector, and they pay five percent because of existing
state | aw

Senator W/l ken asked in which of the three sectors the two
af orenenti oned vessels are cl assified.

Ms. Norosz replied the vessels are considered part of the on-shore
sector.

Senator W1l ken verified they are not considered offshore catcher
processors or nother ships, but are rather “sub-sets” of the on-
shore processors.

Senat or W1l ken i nquired about the process used to deterni ne which
tax is |evied.

Ms. Norosz stated that floating pollock processors are defined as
vessels “that are not permanently affixed to the land or that
doesn’t stay in one location for the entire tax year.”

Senator Wlken inquired if this definition applies to the two
vessel s holding the permts.

Ms. Norosz confirned it does.

Senator Wl ken asked if a facility affixed to the shore is required
to pay | ocal taxes.

Ms. Norosz stated they would be if a local tax were in effect.

Senator W/ ken asked if an offshore facility that is limted to
staying in one place for one year would have to pay a | ocal tax.

Ms. Norosz replied it would be if the vessel were |ocated within a

|l ocal taxing district. She continued that nunicipalities and
bor oughs have differing | ocal tax structures.

SFC- 02 (12) 03/ 21/ 02



SFC 02 # 38, Side B 10:09 AM

Senator W1l ken asked if the two permtted vessels operate within a
| ocal taxation area.

Ms. Norosz responded that Icicle Seafoods’ vessel is |ocated
outside of a local taxing district; however, Trident Seafoods
vessel does pay a |local tax.

Senator Wl ken clarified that Trident would pay the State-nandated
three percent tax as well as the local tax. He furthered that under
this bill, Trident would only be required to pay the three percent
“so haven’'t we just flip-flopped that inequity.”

Ms. Norosz responded that those who are operating on-shore and
payi ng local taxes also receive benefits such as fire and police
protection, access to utilities and garbage service from those
communi ties. She continued that dock and harbor space is al so nade
avai l able to them

Ms. Norosz informed the Conmittee that Icicle Seafoods is required
to pay $300,000 for a noorage systemin addition to paying for a
water line to the ship. She stated that Trident Seafoods pays a one
percent local tax. She reiterated that Dutch Harbor has a two
percent |ocal tax and since taxes vary fromcomunity to conmunity,
there could not be equity. She opined that to create equity, the
State could regul ate the local taxation rates.

Ms. Norosz sunmarized this bill as requesting the State charge an
equal rate to all Pollock processors.

Senator W1 ken understood Ms. Norris to be requesting |eveling out
the vessel tax at three percent, whereby the nonies that Icicle
Seaf oods pays for services at its |ocation wuld equate to the
nonies an on-shore processor pays in local taxes for simlar
servi ces.

Ms. Norosz replied yes, on-shore processors are paying for services
that Icicle Seafoods is not receiving.

Senat or Austerman stated “nother ships” pay the three percent state
tax and do not pay |ocal taxes.

Co-Chair Donley comented that the different rates being charged by
comunities do not appear to be the problem because different

SFC- 02 (13) 03/ 21/ 02



services are provided. He continued that ships operating outside of
a taxation district would likely use services at the nearest
facility or community.

DAVE BENSQON, representing Trident Seafoods Corporation, testified

of fnet to voice the Corporation’s support for this bill. He stated
this legislation would correct the situation whereby Trident
Seafood’s vessel, the Arctic Enterprise, and Icicle Seafoods’

vessel, the Northern Victor, “pay a two percent higher tax rate
t han ot her Poll ock processors in the State.”

M. Benson stated that the current State Raw Fish Tax for shore
based pol |l ock processors and factory trawers is three percent, and
shor e-based Pol | ock processors additionally pay |ocal taxes where
applicable. He stated the Arctic Enterprise pays the five percent
state tax and a one percent local tax for a total of six percent.

M. Benson stated Trident Seafoods has “no issue with the |oca
community taxes;” however requests the State “to offer parity on
the State fish tax.” He continued this legislation “is a surgical
fix affecting only two processors.”

M. Benson stated the AFA identified the three aforenentioned
sectors and allocated fish harvesting rights to those with a
history in the pollock fishing industry. He noted the AFA provided
the State of Al aska the authority to tax pollock harvesters fishing
in federal waters.

M. Benson comented earlier State l|legislation placed a three
percent landing tax on offshore processors; however, the AFA
mandates that all pollock offshore processors are subject to the
three percent State tax.

M. Benson stated this mandate brought equity to all Pollock
processor sectors except the two stationary floating processors
consi dered part of the on-shore sector under the AFA. He stressed
this bill “sinply brings the overdue parity to include the Arctic
Enterprise and the Northern Victor at the three percent state
fisheries business tax that the other sectors are now paying.”

M. Benson informed the Commttee that floating processing vessels
have the advantage of being able to process fish in various
| ocati ons throughout Al aska, and during a year nobve to various
| ocations and process pollock, cod, crab, herring and other
speci es.

M. Benson clarified the two nobile floating processors would
continue to pay a five percent tax on all non-pollock species they

SFC- 02 (14) 03/ 21/ 02



process. He commented the distinction between these two floating
processors and others is that these two vessels, by federal |aw,
process pollock in a single geographic location throughout the
entire year and cannot take advantage of the ability to change
| ocations when it would be nore efficient to do so. He stated that
if the State reasons that nobility is an asset and | evies a higher
tax based on that, Trident Seafoods would concur; however currently
the Arctic Enterprise and the Northern Victor do not have that
advant age since they are required to process pollock in a single
| ocation. He concluded this legislation “sinply equalizes the
Fi sheries Business Tax rate with the other shore side processors
and the Landi ng Tax” that shore side processors are subject to in
t he pol |l ock industry.

M. Benson clarified that an earlier question asking if changing
the definition of factory trawlers to “all ow novenent for periodic
repairs and maintenance,” and inspection, but not to allow for
processing in other |ocations, would not benefit Trident Seafoods
situation because their vessel, the Arctic Enterprise, also
processes sal non in another |ocation during the year.

Senator Ward asked if Trident Seafoods owned the vessel, the Arctic
Enterprise, in 1998 when the AFA was enact ed.

M. Benson stated that Trident Seafoods purchased the Arctic
Enterprise in July 1999.

REPRESENTATI VE CARL MOSES informed the Conmittee the Northern
Victor processing vessel’s original owners purchased the vesse

with the intent to avoid paying property and sales taxes to the
Muni cipality of Unal aska. He opined the Northern Victor and the
Arctic Enterprise’s current owners purchased the vessels at a
purchase price that factored in the five percent floating processor
tax as both vessels were purchased after the five percent tax went
into effect.

Representative Mses stated; however, he is synpathetic to the
inequity in these and other fisheries taxes and voi ced support for
| evyi ng an across-the-board five percent tax with credits all owed
for any nunicipality property taxes that are | evied.

Representati ve Mbses commented that the State’s current ability to
collect a landing tax from all processors is questionable as it
pertains to fish caught outside the three-mle |imt; however, the
fishing industry has agreed to pay the tax without requiring a
court decision. He stated it mght be difficult to raise the
|l anding tax to five percent because of the question as to the
State’s jurisdiction.

SFC- 02 (15) 03/ 21/ 02



Representative Mses noted the State taxes salnobn cannery
processing activities at 4.5 percent.

Representative Mses stated nunerous communities wthin his
District would | ose the rebate noney if this bill were enacted.

Senat or Lenman asked how comunities receive the rebate noney if the
processor is not located within their boundari es.

Representative Mses infornmed the Commttee the tax portion
identified for the rebate program “is pooled” and distributed to
comuni ties invol ved.

Senator Leman asked for clarification whether the pool of rebate
noney is divided anongst the affected communities or all the
comunities in the program

Representative Moses stated it is distributed to all comunities in
the affected area.

Senator Leman, referring to the credit Representative Mses
suggested for municipality | evied taxes, asked how paynents in |ieu
of taxes for water, garbage and the |ike, m ght be addressed.

Representative Mses opined that numerous fishermen attenpt to
avoi d paying taxes, but still use a community’s facilities such as
the landfill. He continued that processing vessels generate
significant waste that is deposited in these landfills.

Senator Leman ascertai ned that nost landfills have a fee structure
in place to recoup costs of providing services.

Representative Mses responded the rates are not adequately
charged. He inforned that federal |aw nmandates that any place wth
a dock is required to receive waste from any vessel that uses the
dock, and it nmay be provided at no charge to the vessel.

Senator Ward suggested that if taxes were reduced, the fishing
i ndustry woul d have nore di sposable incone to benefit comrunities
and enpl oyees.

Senat or Austerman confirnmed that the State tax nonies collected
from vessels operating outside of a defined local district are
pool ed and rebated to communities in the conmon area. He infornmed
the Commttee that if this bill were enacted, Kodiak would | ose
approxi mately $10, 000 and Unal aska woul d | ose approxi mately $60, 000
in rebate nonies fromthat pool

SFC- 02 (16) 03/ 21/ 02



Senat or Austerman rem nded the Committee this bill addresses the
State tax on fisheries and that a vessel’s |location is a separate
issue. He stated the Unalaska City Council voiced a neutral
position on this bill

Representative Moses stated the Al eutian East Borough could | ose
approxi mately $170,000 in rebate nonies.

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the Bill to be HELD in Comm ttee.

#SB308

CS FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 308( RES)

"An Act relating to the Al aska coastal managenent program and
the responsibilities of the Al aska Coastal Policy Council; and
providing for an effective date."”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Committee.

Co- Chair Donl ey noved to adopt CS SB 308, 22-LS1516\J as a working
draft.

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT, sponsor of the bill, explained this
committee substitute elimnates the petition process that was
included in the original bill as it is addressed in other
| egi slation; “prohibits the adoption by reference of state statutes
and regulations by coastal district;” and allows permtting
agenci es to nmake consi stency determ nations in separate phases for
a North Slope natural gas pipeline project paralleling the Trans
Al aska Pi peline Systemand the Al aska H ghway or a route that runs
to Al aska tidewater.”

There being no objections, the commttee substitute was ADOPTED.

Senator Therriault noted the bill title is purposefully “rather
broad” because a title change is anticipated as a result of related
| egi sl ati on under consideration.

JOHN SHI VELY, Representative, Foothills Pipeline Conpany, testified
via tel econference from Anchorage to voice support for this bill
He stressed that inproving the consistency determnation permtting
process to allow agencies to phase projects “nakes sense,”
especially when dealing with | arge projects.

SFC- 02 (17) 03/ 21/ 02



DANA OLSON, testified via teleconference from Mat Su, and voiced
concern that this bill is noving through the process too quickly.
She suggested the formation of a subconmttee to include citizens
to address concerns and frustrations on the current Al aska Coasta
Managenent Program (ACWMP) and subsequently offer recommendations to
the Commttee. She opined that the Commttee is not aware of al
the issues invol ved, and she voiced opposition to the elimnation
of the petition process.

Senator Therriault, in response to a question from Senator Ward,
stated that concerns of people in South Anchorage are addressed in
the commttee substitute by the elimnation of the petition process
| anguage. He reiterated that other |egislation would address this
process.

Senat or Austerman asked if the gas pipeline |anguage included in
the bill weakens the State’s position in the permtting process.

Senator Therriault stated the |anguage “is project neutral but
route specific,” and elimnates the concern that the State’'s
current permtting process is too rigid and a deterrent to a
project’s forward novenent.

PATRICK GALVIN, Director, Division of Governnental Coordination
Ofice of the Governor, inforned the Cormittee the Departnment has
no objections to the bill

Senator Lenman offered a notion to report the commttee substitute
fromCommttee with acconpanying fiscal note.

There being no objections, CS SB 308 (FIN was MOWED out of
Commttee with the acconpanying zero fiscal note fromthe Ofice of
t he Governor, dated 3/05/02.

#SB4

CS FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 4(FIN)

"An Act relating to a mandatory exenption from mnuni ci pal
property taxes for certain residences and to an optional
exenption from nuni ci pal taxes for residential property; and
providing for an effective date."

This was the fourth hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee. [Note: The bill was previously reported from Conmittee;

SFC- 02 (18) 03/ 21/ 02



on 3/27/01 and returned on 3/01/02.]

Senator Therriault, the sponsor of the bill, explained that the
commttee substitute for CS SB 4 (FIN) specifies a nmaxi mum | ocal
residential property tax exenption of $15,6000, and disallows the
partial year property tax exenptions approved in the original
Finance Commttee bill. He stated that nunicipalities have reported
the partial year property tax provision cunbersone to adm ni ster

Senator Therriault also noted the addition of a new provision
allowing local governnments the ability to provide individuals
participating in |local volunteer organizations such as vol unteer
fire departnents and Energency Medical Services up to a $5, 000
assessed val ue property tax exenption. He nentioned that several
communities are having difficulty recruiting sufficient nunbers of
volunteer fire fighters, and the hope is this exenption would serve
as an incentive to entice nore individuals to volunteer. He stated
this provision would only result in an approxi mate $11, 000 | oss of
property tax revenue to the Fairbanks/North Star Borough if all
volunteer fire fighters took advantage of the exenption.

Senator Geen inquired if the volunteer exenption would affect the
State’ s Foundation Funding Formula to conmunities.

Senator Therriault responded the Foundation Fornula is applicable
to the total taxable value of property in a borough, and woul d not
be i npacted by the exenptions.

SFC 02 # 39, Side A 10:57 AM

Senator Green commented there is a possibility that comrunities
m ght want to add other individuals to the exenption specified in
Section 2.

Co-Chair Kelly reported nunicipalities have been seeking
i nexpensive nmethods to increase volunteer fire fighters
conpensation. He commented the demand for further training,
liability issues and responsibility that volunteers experience
woul d continue to increase.

Senator Green asserted there are other sectors of individuals that
muni cipalities m ght want considered for an incentive exenption.

Senator Therriault qualified that Section 2 specifically identifies
who is eligible for the exenption.

SFC- 02 (19) 03/ 21/ 02



DANA OLSON testified via teleconference from Mat-Su to ask the
State to consider instituting a joint admnistration process
wher eby different agencies could access ot her agency records.

Co-Chair Kelly acknow edged Ms. d son’s concern; however, noted
this bill does not address that issue.

Senator Ward inquired how this bill would affect a private fire
service area that has been forned for taxation services.

Senator Therriault responded the property tax levy for this bil
woul d not affect that area.

Senator Ward asked if residents of that area who vol unteer would
qualify for the Section 2 exenption.

Senator Therriault stated that |ocal governnents would have the
authority to craft the vol unteer exenptions.

Senator Therriault noted a new fiscal note would be required to
address the changes in the proposed conmttee substitute.

AT EASE 11:04 AM/ 11:06

Senator Green inquired how a community would replace the | oss of
incone incurred if both Section 1 and Section 2 were enact ed.

Senator Therriault comented a community could choose not to nake
up the lost revenue or could replace it by |levying or raising other
taxes or fees.

Senator Green renmarked that comunities could also ask the
Legi slature for nore revenue sharing funds.

Senat or Therriault concurred.

Senator Green asked if this bill would benefit certain communities
nore than others.

Senator Therriault responded he was not aware that it would,
however, communities with a residential real property exenption in
pl ace woul d not | ose as nuch revenue as a conmunity that does not,
but chooses to enact the exenptions specified in this bill

Senator Geen inquired how a conmunity would qualify for nore
funding fromthe State.

Senator Therriault reiterated that any community coul d enact | ocal

SFC- 02 (20) 03/ 21/ 02



taxes or fees to fill the void.

Senator G een opined this would then be nore like a shift in
funding sources within the comunity.

Senator Therriault concurred, and exanpled it could be a shift from
residential honeowners to other properties in a borough.

Amendnent #5: (Note: Referred to as Amendnent #1) This anendnent
woul d incorporate the non-applicability of the new greater
exenption levels to communities with a per-capita debt in excess of
$15,000 into the title of the bill

AT EASE: 11:20 AM/ 11:23 AM

Co- Chair Donl ey noved for adoption of Amendnent #1.

There being no objections, the Anendnment was ADOPTED.

Senator W/l ken offered a notion to report CS SB 4 from Conmittee
wi th acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

There being no objections, CS SB 4 (2dFIN) was REPORTED from
Commttee with a new zero fiscal note from the Departnent of
Revenue, dated 4/03/02.

#

ADJ CQURNIVENT

Co- Chair Dave Kelly adjourned the neeting at 11:23 AM

SFC- 02 (21) 03/ 21/ 02



